
 
Town of Kittery 

200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 
 

Board of Appeals 
Meeting Agenda, Council Chambers 

Tuesday, July 23, 2019 
Regular Meeting - 6:30 P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order; Introductory; Roll Call  

2.  Pledge of Allegiance  

3.  Agenda Amendment and Adoption  

4.  Executive session (if required)  

5.  Public Hearings  

a. Michael Dumond, Applicant, 53 Old Post Road (Map 8 Lot 6), Commercial Zone (C-3), 
requesting a Miscellaneous Variation Request per the terms of 16.7.3.3B(3)(c), and seeking 
relief from setback requirements for an accessory structure.  
 
b. Washburn Realty Group, Owner, 60 Route 236 (Map 29 Lot 14), Commercial Zone (C-
2), requesting a Miscellaneous Variation Request to the terms of Article III of Town Code 
Chapter 16.7 (Nonconformance), seeking relief of front, side, and wetland setbacks for a 
commercial building.  
 

6.  Unfinished Business  

7.  New Business  

8.  Acceptance of Previous Minutes  
a. September 25, 2018 
b. November 13, 2018 
c. January 8, 2019 
d. February 26, 2019 
e. March 12, 2019 
f. April 9, 2019 
g. June 11, 2019 
h. June 25, 2019  

9.  Board Member or CEO Issues or Comment  
 a. Introduction of new CEO Craig Alfis  

10.  Adjournment 
 
 













PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 STAFF REPORT 

 
BOA Meeting Date: July 23, 2019  

 
Item #: MVR2019-06  

 
 
STAFF REPORT – 53 OLD POST ROAD – MISCELLANEOUS VARIATION REQUEST 

 
 
Project Name:  53 Old Post Road 
 
Applicant:   Michael Dumond   
 
Owner:   Denise & Trevor Silveria  
 
Proposed Development: Accessory structure on non-conforming lot  
 
Requests: Miscellaneous Variation Request per LUDC Section 

16.7.3.3.B(3)(c), expansion of a residential use in the Commercial 
Zone  

 
Site Addresses:  53 Old Post Road  
 
Map & Lot Numbers: M 8 L 6  

 

 
 
Current Zoning: 
Commercial (C-3) - This zoning district is intended to provide general retail sales, services and 
business space within the Town in locations capable of conveniently serving community-wide 
and/or regional trade areas and oriented primarily to automobile access.  



Dwelling units are not permitted nor allowed by special exception in the C-3 zone. The existing 
dwelling use is a legal, nonconforming use.  
 
Staff Recommendation: DENIAL of miscellaneous variation request.  
 
District Standards: 
 

Commercial Zoning District Standards 
 Land Area per Dwelling (min.) N/A  Front Yard Setback (min.) 50 feet 
 Maximum Building Coverage 40%  Rear Yard Setback (min.) 30 feet 
 Lot Size (min.) 40,000 sf  Side Yard Setback (min.) 30 feet 
 
Current Use: One dwelling unit (legal, nonconforming)   
 
Surrounding Land Uses: 
West: Commercial (C-3), dwelling unit (legal, nonconforming use)  
East: Commercial (C-3), dwelling unit (legal, nonconforming use) 
North: Commercial (C-3), commercial use   
South: Residential – Urban (R-U), park use (Memorial Field, Town land)  
 
Future Land Use: 
The subject property is located within a Growth Area in the Future Land Use Map. A Growth 
Area is defined in the Comprehensive Plan as, “areas where the Town would like to encourage 
future development to occur.”  
 
Site Description: 
The subject property consists of approximately 8,702 square feet (.2 acres), located along the 
northern right-of-way of Old Post Road. The property is a nonconforming lot of record. The property 
is zoned Commercial (C-3). The lot contains one dwelling of approximately 1,344 square feet in 
size. The structure is legally nonconforming due to it encroaching on all setbacks required by the 
zone.  
 
History of the Property: 
The property contains a dwelling unit constructed in 1940. Tax records show the dwelling consists 
of approximately 1,344 square feet. The existing structure is located within the 50-foot front yard 
setback required for C-3 zoning district but its current setback is in line with the average setbacks 
for adjacent dwellings along the road.  
 
Description of the Issue:  
The applicant is a tenant in the existing dwelling and has placed an above ground pool in the side 
yard between the dwelling and the neighboring property at 51 Old Post Road. The pool, an 
accessory structure, is located within the side yard setback (30 feet required). The applicant was 
denied a permit by the Code Enforcement Officer to have the pool remain in its location. The 
applicant did not appeal the CEO denial and instead requests BOA approval for the pool based on 
section 16.7.3.3.B.(3)(c):  
 



Where the expansion of the residential use within the Commercial Zones involves an 
expansion of a structure, the structure must be expanded in conformity with the 
dimensional requirements contained in this title. If the proposed structure expansion 
cannot meet the dimensional requirements of this title, the application may be submitted to 
the Board of Appeals for review as a miscellaneous variation request. In reviewing all such 
applications, the Board of Appeals must use the criteria established in this section, and 
then may approve the proposed variations to the dimensional requirements. 

 
However, the placement of a pool is not an “expansion” of a structure. In denying the applicant’s 
original request to place the pool, the CEO explained that the nonconformance section of the code 
would not cover a pool. There is language in the code providing exceptions for residential storage 
sheds and residential garages of a certain size, but limited to the Residential – Village (R-V) zone 
and not applicable to pools. Staff maintains there is no path forward for approval by the BOA.  
 
Applicant’s Miscellaneous Variation Request: 
Section 16.6.6 requires the Board of Appeals to use the following process when hearing requests: 
 
§ 16.6.6 Basis for decision. 
A. Conditions. 

(1) In hearing appeals/requests under this section, the Board of Appeals must first 
establish that it has a basis in law to conduct the hearing and decide the question. 

 
Staff contends there is no basis in law for the Board of Appeals to decide this question. 
An accessory structure was placed illegally in the side setback of a nonconforming lot 
with a legal, nonconforming principal structure. However, the accessory structure 
itself is not a legal, nonconforming structure and Town Code offers no avenue for the 
Board of Appeals approve its relocation.   

  
 
Using the standards and criteria found in 16.6.6 of the LUDC, Staff recommends DENIAL of the 
submitted miscellaneous variation request.  
 
 
 







53 Old Post Road – Thursday, July 11, 2019  

 

 















































PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 STAFF REPORT 

 
BOA Meeting Date: July 23, 2019  

 
Item #: MVR2019-07 

 
 

STAFF REPORT – 60 ROUTE 236 – MISCELLANEOUS VARIATION REQUEST 
 

 
Project Name:  Plumbing supply warehouse  
 
Applicant:   Matthew Williams  
 
Owner:   Washburn Realty Group  
 
Proposed Development: Construct new commercial building and associated parking lot   
 
Requests: Miscellaneous Variation Request per LUDC Section 16.7.3 

Nonconformance, seeking relief of front, side, and wetland setbacks 
for a commercial building   

 
Site Addresses:  60 Route 236  
 
Map & Lot Numbers: M 29 L 14  

  
 
Current Zoning: 
Commercial (C-2) - This zoning district is intended to provide general retail sales, services and 
business space within the Town in locations capable of conveniently serving community-wide 
and/or regional trade areas and oriented primarily to automobile access. 
 



 
The following uses are permitted in the Commercial (C-2) Zone: (r) Building materials and garden 
supply. The proposed use is permitted by right.  
 
Staff Recommendation: APPROVAL of miscellaneous variation request.  
 
District Standards: 
 

Commercial Zoning District Standards 
 Land Area per Dwelling (min.) N/A  Front Yard Setback (min.) 50 feet 
 Maximum Building Coverage 40%  Rear Yard Setback (min.) 30 feet 
 Lot Size (min.) 40,000 sf  Side Yard Setback (min.) 30 feet 
 
 
Current Use: Vacant, dilapidated warehouse  
 
Surrounding Land Uses: 
West (across road): Residential – Suburban (R-S), dwelling unit  
East: Commercial (C-2), vacant 
North: Commercial (C-2) dwelling unit 
South: Commercial (C-2), vacant  
 
Future Land Use:  
The subject property is located within a Growth Area in the Future Land Use Map. A Growth 
Area is defined in the Comprehensive Plan as, “areas where the Town would like to encourage 
future development to occur.”  
 
Site Description: 
The subject property consists of approximately 64,469 square feet (1.48 acres), located along the 
eastern right-of-way of Route 236 north of I-95. The property is a nonconforming lot of record. The 
property is zoned Commercial (C-2). The property is approximately 150 feet deep as measured from 
the Route 236 right-of-way to the eastern property line and approximately 500 feet in length along 
its Route 236 frontage, making it a very narrow lot. A wetland exists on the eastern portion of the 
property and into the adjacent lot. The Shoreland Resource Officer determined the wetland to be in 
excess of 1 acre, so the required building setback would be 100 feet from the wetland.  
 
History of the Property: 
The property contains a vacant warehouse structure and old foundation with no structure. The 
former use has not been in operation for several years. The existing foundation and structure do 
not conform to the C-2 setback standards, with the old foundation located less than two feet from 
the property line along Route 236.  
 
Description of the Issue:  
The applicant proposes to construct a new two-story commercial building – with 4,608 square feet 
on each floor – to serve as a plumbing supply warehouse and showroom. The front building setback 
for the C-2 zone is 50 feet, and the setback from the wetland to the east is 100 feet. If applying 



those setbacks to the property, there appears to be no area where a building would not violate 
setbacks. The applicant is request Board of Appeals approval to site the building in an area that 
would still violate some setbacks, but that would allow for less impacts to the wetlands to the east.  
 
Because the existing building and foundation are nonconforming structures, Kittery Land Use & 
Development Code 16.7.3.3.A.(1) requires Board of Appeals approval. Town Code Section 
16.7.3.3.A.(2) states that when determining if a structure relocation meets the setback to the 
“greatest practical extent,” the Board of Appeals must consider the following conditions: 
 

(a) The size of the lot; 
The lot is 1.48 acres, which does not conform to the current C-2 district standards. 
The lot is very narrow at 150 feet from the western property line along Route 236 to 
the eastern property boundary.   
 

(b) The slope of the land; 
The land includes some significant grade changes due to the presence of low-lying 
areas to the east.  

 
(c) The potential for soil erosion; 

There is potential for soil erosion impacts to the wetland to the east without significant 
changes to the existing site.  
 

(d) The location of other structures on the property and on adjacent properties; 
Existing non-conforming structures are to be removed and replaced with new 
commercial structures located as far away from the wetland resource as possible. A 
dwelling unit occupies the adjacent parcel to the north, and the proposed building 
would be sited farther away from this property than the existing foundation. There 
are no adjacent structures to the east, west, or south.  

 
(e) The location of the septic system and other on-site soils suitable for septic systems; 

The project proposes to site a new septic system underneath the driveway on the north 
end of the site in suitable soils.  
 

(f) The type and amount of vegetation to be removed to accomplish the relocation. 
The proposed relocation will not require removing significant vegetation. The existing 
site contains several paved and gravel areas that will be removed to redesign the site, 
as well as an existing building and old foundation. New vegetation is planned between 
the proposed driveway and the wetlands to the east, which can be accomplished if the 
proposed building is sited as close to Route 236 as possible.  
 

This project will also require Planning Board approval via the site plan process.  
 
Applicant’s Miscellaneous Variation Request: 
Section 16.6.6 requires the Board of Appeals to use the following process when hearing requests: 
 
§ 16.6.6 Basis for decision. 



A. Conditions. 
(1) In hearing appeals/requests under this section, the Board of Appeals must first 

establish that it has a basis in law to conduct the hearing and decide the question. 
 

LUDC Section 16.6.4.C.(1) allows the Board of Appeals to decide variations for 
nonconformities covered in Section 16.7.3. Further, Section 16.7.3.3.A.(1) states that, 
“A nonconforming structure may be relocated within the boundaries of the parcel on 
which the structure is located provided the site of relocation conforms to all 
dimensional requirements, to the greatest practical extent, as determined by the 
Planning Board or Board of Appeals, and provided the applicant demonstrates the 
present subsurface sewage disposal system meets the requirements of state law and 
the State of Maine Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules, or a new system can be 
installed in compliance with the law and said rules. In no case may the relocation of a 
structure be permitted that causes the structure to be more nonconforming.” 

  
(2) In hearing appeals/requests under this section, the Board of Appeals must use the 

following criteria as the basis of a decision, that: 
 

(a) The proposed use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of 
adjacent properties or of properties in adjacent use zones; 
 
Staff believes the use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of 
adjacent properties since all adjacent properties are zoned Commercial 
C-2 in a conforming or legal, nonconforming state. The 236 corridor is 
zoned for the proposed type of commercial use.  
 

(b) The use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of permitted or 
legally established uses in the zone wherein the proposed use is to be 
located or of permitted or legally established uses in adjacent use zones; 
 
Staff believes the use will not prevent the orderly and reasonable use of 
legally established uses in the zone since the proposed use is permitted 
by right and the property is surrounded by either vacant or 
nonconforming uses.  
 

(c) The safety, the health and the welfare of the Town will not be adversely 
affected by the proposed use or its location; and 
 
Staff believes the use will not adversely affect the health and welfare of 
the Town.  
 

(d) The use will be in harmony with and promote the general purposes and 
intent of this title. 
 
Staff believes the use is in harmony with Title 16 and promotes its 
general purposes.  



 
Factors for consideration. In making such determination, the Board of Appeals must also give 
consideration, among other things, to: 
 

(1) The character of the existing and probable development of uses in the zone and the 
peculiar suitability of such zone for the location of any of such uses; 
 
The proposed use involved is allowed in the zone by right.  
 

(2) The conservation of property values and the encouragement of the most 
appropriate uses of land; 
 
The proposed project will eliminate a dilapidated building an eyesore, 
preserving area property values with an appropriate use.  
 

(3) The effect that the location of the proposed use may have upon the congestion or 
undue increase of vehicular traffic congestion on public streets or highways; 

 
The proposed use will not cause an undue increase of vehicular traffic. The 
property is located along Route 236, a commercial corridor classified as a 
Minor Arterial in the Kittery Comprehensive Plan.  

 
(4) The availability of adequate and proper public or private facilities for the 

treatment, removal or discharge of sewage, refuse or other effluent (whether 
liquid, solid, gaseous or otherwise) that may be caused or created by or as a result 
of the use; 
 
The project proposes to construct adequate on-site septic facilities.  

 
(5) Whether the use, or materials incidental thereto, or produced thereby, may give off 

obnoxious gases, odors, smoke or soot; 
 
The proposed use produces no obnoxious gases, odors, smoke or soot. 
 

(6) Whether the use will cause disturbing emission of electrical discharges, dust, light, 
vibration or noise; 

 
The proposed use causes no disturbing emission of electrical discharges, dust, 
light, vibration or noise.  

 
(7) Whether the operations in pursuance of the use will cause undue interference with 

the orderly enjoyment by the public of parking or of recreational facilities, if 
existing, or if proposed by the Town or by other competent governmental agency; 
 
No undue interference should result from this use.  

 



(8) The necessity for paved off-street parking; 
 

The project proposes to construct 19 parking spaces based on calculations of 
the areas for a “warehouse” at 1 space per 500 gross square feet. Town code 
does not include specific parking requirements for a “building supply” use. 
Town Code Section 16.8.9.4.C. states that “…the Town Board or officer with 
jurisdiction to approve the application is authorized to determine the parking 
requirements and projected development use intensity.” The Planning Board 
will have ultimate approval authority over the minimum parking requirements 
for the site.  

 
(9) Whether a hazard to life, limb or property because of fire, flood, erosion or panic 

may be created by reason or as a result of the use, or by the structures to be used, 
or by the inaccessibility of the property or structures thereon for the convenient 
entry and operation of fire and other emergency apparatus, or by the undue 
concentration or assemblage of persons upon such plot; 
 
No hazards should result from this use.  

 
(10) Whether the use, or the structures to be used, will cause an overcrowding of land 

or undue concentration of population or unsightly storage of equipment, vehicles 
or other materials; 

 
No overcrowded should result from this use.  

 
(11) Whether the plot area is sufficient, appropriate and adequate for the use and the 

reasonably anticipated operation and expansion thereof; 
 

The existing lot is a legal, non-conforming lot of record.  
 

(12) Whether the proposed use will be adequately screened and buffered from 
contiguous properties; 

 
The project proposes landscape buffering and vegetation per the code.  

 
(13) The assurance of adequate landscaping, grading and provision for natural 

drainage; 
 

The lot currently slopes away from Route 236 and will require regrading. The 
project proposes a retaining wall along the driveway and portions of the 
parking lot to direct water away from the wetland to the east and into 
appropriate stormwater infrastructure.  

 
(14) Whether the proposed use will provide for adequate pedestrian circulation; 

 
The proposal does not include the provision of pedestrian facilities along Route 



236. The applicant will need to build such improvements consistent with the 
“Design and Construction Standards for Streets and Pedestrianways” for an 
Arterial Highway outlined in Table 16.8 or request a waiver from the Planning 
Board during site plan review.  

 
(15) Whether the proposed use anticipates and eliminates potential nuisances created 

by its location; and 
 

No new nuisances are expected from the continuation of the single-family 
dwelling use.  

 
(16) The satisfactory compliance with all applicable performance standard criteria 

contained in Chapters 16.8 and 16.9.  
 

Other than the miscellaneous variation request filed here, the proposed use and 
site plan appear to conform to Title 16.8 and 16.9, subject to Planning Board 
review and approval.  

 
Using the standards and criteria found in 16.6.6 of the LUDC, Staff recommends APPROVAL 
of the miscellaneous variation request to relocate a non-conforming structure as proposed.   
 
 



 
TOWN OF KITTERY 

Planning and Development 
200 Rogers Road, Kittery, ME 03904 

Telephone: 207-475-1304 Fax: 207-439-
6806 

 
 

TO: BOARD OF APPEALS 

FROM: ADAM CAUSEY, DIRECTOR OF PLANNING& DEVELOPMENT 

CC: KENDRA AMARAL, TOWN MANAGER 

SUBJECT: BOARD MEETING MINUTES  

DATE: JULY 18, 2019 

 

Sometime in late 2018, the Planning & Development Department lost its dedicated 
minute taker for the Planning Board and Board of Appeals. The Town has found it 
difficult to fill that position in the current economic climate. Planning staff is working 
to clear the backlog of minutes that need to be approved by the Board of Appeals. To 
that end, the Town Manager has directed staff to generate minutes based on the 
minimum requirements contained in state law. These action minutes will look a bit 
different than previous meeting minutes.  

State law on records of meetings is as follows:  

§403. Meetings to be open to public; record of meetings 

1. Proceedings open to public. Except as otherwise provided by statute or by 
section 405, all public proceedings must be open to the public and any person must 
be permitted to attend a public proceeding. 

2. Record of public proceedings. Unless otherwise provided by law, a record of 
each public proceeding for which notice is required under section 406 must be 
made within a reasonable period of time after the proceeding and must be open to 
public inspection. At a minimum, the record must include: 

A. The date, time and place of the public proceeding;  

B. The members of the body holding the public proceeding recorded as either 
present or absent; and  

C. All motions and votes taken, by individual member, if there is a roll call. 

3. Audio or video recording. An audio, video or other electronic recording of a 
public proceeding satisfies the requirements of subsection 2. 



4. Maintenance of record. Record management requirements and retention 
schedules adopted under Title 5, chapter 6 apply to records required under this 
section. 

5. Validity of action. The validity of any action taken in a public proceeding is not 
affected by the failure to make or maintain a record as required by this section. 

6. Advisory bodies exempt from record requirements. Subsection 2 does not apply 
to advisory bodies that make recommendations but have no decision-making 
authority.  

Since all Board of Appeals meetings are broadcast and recorded, staff feels this change 
in no way prevents the public from gaining an accurate understanding of what takes 
place during public meetings. The minutes submitted to the Board by staff are a starting 
point – Board of Appeals members are the sole judge of how and if minutes are 
approved. Staff will work with the Board to amend and modify minutes, subject to votes 
of the Board.  

The next Board of Appeals’ meeting agenda (July 23, 2019) contains several past 
meetings worth of minutes. Staff recommends each board member review the minutes, 
make any corrections or additions they feel necessary, and bring up any modifications 
to the minutes for a vote of the Board at the appropriate time.  

Please direct all questions or comments to the chair of the Board of Appeals.  

 

Thank you,  
 
 
Adam Causey, AICP 
Director, Planning & Development Department   
 


	Meeting minutes memo - 07-18-2019.pdf
	Planning and Development


